ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 9, 2011
1:30 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senat or John Coghi | |

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 61

"An Act nmaking corrective anendnents to the Alaska Statutes as
recommended by the revisor of statutes; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSSB 61(STA) OUT OF COWMM TTEE

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Par ol e Board
Dani el Mrris

CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar
WIIliam G anger

CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Pol i ce Standards Counci l
Rebecca Hanon
Kel Iy Al zahar na
Bernice Troglio

CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 61

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 9, 2011



SHORT TITLE: 2011 REVISOR S BI LL
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF LEG SLATI VE COUNCI L

01/ 24/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 11 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 15/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 15/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 15/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 11 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 17/ 11 (S) Moved CSSB 61(STA) Qut of Committee
02/ 17/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 21/ 11 (S) STA RPT CS 2DP 3NR  SAME TI TLE
02/ 21/ 11 (S) DP: W ELECHOWBKI , MEYER

02/ 21/ 11 (S) NR. KOOKESH, PASKVAN, G ESSEL

02/ 28/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 28/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 28/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 09/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

DANI EL MORRI'S, Appoi nt ee

State of Al aska Parol e Board

Sol dot na, AK,

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the State of
Al aska Parol e Board.

W LLI AM GRANGER, Appoi nt ee

Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar Associ ation

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Board of
Governors of the Al aska Bar Associ ati on.

THERESA OBERMEYER, representing herself

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to the appointnent
of M. G anger.

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Appoi ntee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci l

Barrow, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

TERRY VRABEC, Director

Al aska Police Standards Council (APSC)
Juneau, AK

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 9, 2011



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information related to APSC
process and procedures.

REBECCA HAMON, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci

Ki ng Sal non, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

BERNI CE TROG.I O, Appoi nt ee

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci |

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 30: 01 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m Senators Paskvan,
McGuire, Coghill, Welechowski, and French were present at the
call to order

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
State of Al aska Parol e Board

1:32: 39 PM

CHAIR FRENCH announced the first order of business would be
confirmation hearings. He asked M. Morris to tell the commttee
about hinself and why he wants to serve on the State of Al aska
Par ol e Board.

DANIEL MORRI'S, Appoi nt ee, State of Alaska Parole Board,
Sol dotna, AK, stated that this is his first week serving on the
Parole Board; he is inpressed with the quality of personnel and
excited about the job. He informed the conmttee that he has 23
years experience in |law enforcenent; three years as mlitary
police and 20 years with the Kenai Police Departnent, the | ast
nine of which he served as the chief of police. He's been
retired for nore than eight years and |ooks forward to this
i nportant opportunity.

CHAIR FRENCH asked how large the Kenai Police Departnent was
when he served as chief of police.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 9, 2011



MR MORRIS replied there were 25 enployees. During his tine with
the departnment he served on the Al aska Police Standards Counci
for one four-year term two and one half as chair. He added that
he has a bachelor's degree in crimnology and an associate
degree in crimnal justice adm nistration.

CHAI R FRENCH reviewed M. Mrris' resune and asked if during the
time he served on the Kenai force, he had occasion to appear at
Par ol e Board heari ngs.

MR MORRIS replied that as an officer his only contacts were
with the Departnent of Corrections (DOC) itself through the
W | dwood pretrial facility. As chief he attended peninsul a-w de
| aw enforcenent neetings and he interacted wth parole officers
at the Kenai office as they worked to revoke probation. He added
that the board currently neets at the Parole Board office, which
is next to the J.C. Penny parking garage.

1: 36: 33 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked about his philosophy and approach to
service on the Parol e Board.

MR MORRIS replied public safety is his nunber one focus, and he
is aware that everyone who appears before the Parole Board w |
at sonme point reenter the comunity. These people should be
treated with respect and held accountable for their actions,
while ensuring that the best interest of the state and its
citizens are considered.

CHAI R FRENCH t hanked M. Mrris for stepping forward to serve.

SENATOR MCGUI RE revi ewed hi s resumne and asked what
recommendati ons he nmade to revise the Al aska Adm nistrative Code
pertaining to the Al aska Police Standards Council when he served
on the council and if they were adopted and finalized into | aw.

MR. MORRI S apol ogi zed that he didn't recall.

SENATOR MCGUIRE stated that M. Mrris is well qualified to
serve. She provided her enmail for further comunicati on.

CHAI R FRENCH found no further questions and solicited a notion.
1:39: 50 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to advance the name Daniel Mrris to
the joint session of the Senate and House for confirmation to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 9, 2011



the State of Alaska Parole Board. There being no objection, it
was so order ed.

SB 61-2011 REVISOR S BILL

1:40: 22 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 61 and noted that
it was heard previously. [CSSB 61(STA) was before the
committee.]

1:40: 33 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to report CS for SB 61, version |,
from commttee wth individual recomendations and attached
fiscal note(s).

CHAIR FRENCH announced that wthout objection, CSSB 61(STA)
nmoved fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee.

At ease from1l:41 p.m to 1:42 p. m

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar Associ ation

CHAI R FRENCH announced the next order of business would be a
confirmation hearing for WIliam Ganger to serve on the Board
of Governors of the Alaska Bar Association. He asked M. G anger
to tell the committee about hinself and his continued interest
i n serving.

1:42:52 PM

W LLI AM GRANGER, Appoi ntee, Board of CGovernors of the Al aska Bar
Associ ation, stated that he is a lifelong resident of Anchorage
and a banker by profession. He served on the Board of Governors
for nine years and has been off for about one and a half years.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if during his nine year of service any issues
particularly stand out.

MR. GRANGER replied it was a busy nine years; disciplinary
procedures were streamlined, a free online research system for
the nenbership was devel oped, rules were tweaked and changed,
and the annual budget was bal anced.

CHAI R FRENCH poi nted out that he was first nom nated by CGovernor
Know es, reappointed by Governor Mur kowsKki , and now is
renom nated by Governor Parnell. The Board of Governors of the
Al aska Bar has 12 nenbers, three are non-attorneys appointed by

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 9, 2011



the governor and nine are active bar nenbers who are el ected by
active bar nenbers. This neans that |egislators have influence
over just the three non-attorneys; the other nine do not go
t hrough this confirmation process.

He asked M. Ganger if his work duties at Wlls Fargo Bank
would interfere with his duties on the Board of Governors.

MR. GRANGER replied the bank is very supportive of his decision
to serve and there woul d be no probl ens.

CHAIR FRENCH explained to M. Ganger that the teleconference
equi prent wasn't working properly and he wouldn't be able to
stay connected telephonically while Theresa Cberneyer gave
testinmony in opposition to his nonmination, but he would be
reconnected after that to provide any rebuttal statenents. He
told M. Ganger he could watch and listen to the live stream at
Al askalegi sl ature. tv.

1:47: 44 PM
At ease to connect the public testifier.

1:48:31 PM
CHAI R FRENCH reconvened the hearing and asked Ms. Oberneyer to
put herself on the record and begin her testinony.

1:48: 52 PM

THERESA OBERMEYER, representing herself, said she regrets that
she didn't hear M. Granger's opening statenment. She stated that
she knows M. Ganger and she didn't believe that he had changed
his prejudiced views. She asked if M. Ganger was listening to
her coments.

CHAI R FRENCH explained the teleconference difficulties and said
he may be listening to the web stream

M5. OBERMEYER continued her testinony and expressed discontent
with the Alaska Bar exam process and procedures. She expressed
her belief that M. Ganger wll be interested in asking
guestions and starting creative thinking as a nenber of the
Board of Governor of the Al aska Bar Association. Public advocacy
doesn't exist, she stated.

1: 57: 02 PM
At ease to reconnect M. G anger.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 9, 2011



CHAIR FRENCH asked M. Granger if he would like to respond to
anyt hing Ms. Cberneyer said.

MR. CGRANGER declined coment.

SENATOR MCGUI RE t hanked M. Granger for his service.

1: 58: 46 PM

SENATOR MCGQUI RE noved to advance the nanme WIliam Ganger to the
joint session of the Senate and House for confirmation to the
Board of Governors of the Al aska Bar Association. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

At ease from1l:59 p.m to 2:00 p. m

Al aska Pol i ce Standards Counci

2:00: 09 PM

CHAIR FRENCH asked Ms. Alzaharna to tell the comittee about
herself and her interest in serving on the Al aska Police
St andar ds Counci | .

KELLY ALZAHARNA, Appointee, Police Standards Council, inforned
the committee that she is the North Slope Borough chief of
police in Barrow. She has been in |aw enforcenent for 23 years,
21 of which have been in Barrow. She has al ways been interested
in maintaining integrity and high standards in |aw enforcenent
t hroughout the state and her service on the Police Standards
Council since 2009 has been a mechani smto achi eve that goal

CHAIR FRENCH asked if she had gone through the confirmation
process before or if she was placed on the board pending
confirmation.

M5. ALZAHARNA replied this is the first tinme she's been through
the confirmation process.

CHAIR FRENCH asked her to tell the conmttee why she is
interested in police standards and what her experience has been
si nce she began servi ng.

2:01: 53 PM

M5. ALZAHARNA explained that early in her career she becane
involved in training police officers to be safe and have a
better relationship with the public. The North Sl ope Borough
Police Departnment hired her from New Mexico and wthin nine
nonths she was pronoted to establish a training unit for the

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 9, 2011



departnment. She has also worked wth other departnents to
address the issues that nmake it difficult to neet |aw
enf orcenent standards in rural comrunities. Since she's been on
the board, the bulk of the work has been to review pendi ng cases
certifications and decertifications.

2:03:32 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if during her time on the council, she'd had
to take decertification votes.

M5. ALZAHARNA sai d yes.
CHAI R FRENCH asked how she approaches that.

M5. ALZAHARNA explained that it's typically a slow process.
There's been an investigation and the director updates the board
along the way as to the status of the pending decertification so
there's adequate information to make a good decision when the
time cones. Nonetheless, it's a difficult decision and she takes
the process seriously because decertification likely ends a
career.

2:04: 36 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked how likely is would be that a person who has
been decertified in one state could get a police certificate
sonmewher e el se.

M5. ALZAHARNA replied she couldn't speak to the |ikelihood
because each state is different, and she isn't sure if another
state would recognize that a person had been decertified in
Al aska.

CHAIR FRENCH observed that people 1in the audience were
indicating that decertification is a death knell to a police
career. He asked how often the police council neets.

M5. ALZAHARNA answered twice a year; once in Decenber in
conjunction with the executive devel opnment conference and once
in conjunction wth the Al aska Peace Oficers Association
conference. She added that she has attended three neetings so
far and the experience has been agreeabl e.

2:05:52 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked why both the police officer positions she
held in New Mexi co were so short.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 9, 2011



M5. ALZAHARNA expl ained that she had a coll ege degree when she
got the job with the Las Cruces Police Departnment, but she
didn't earn enough noney to get off food stanps. She switched to
work for the university police departnment because the pay was
about $100 nore per nonth and she could take additional
university courses for free. Having higher aspirations than to
live on food stanps, she applied for a position with the North
Sl ope Borough Police Departnment when it was brought to her
attention.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked why she decided to return to school in My
2005 to get a Masters of Arts in organizational |eadership. She
further asked where Azusa Pacific University (APU) is | ocated.

M5. ALZAHARNA replied it's located in Azusa, California, which
is a suburb of Los Angeles. The program was a conbination of
di st ance- educati on and on-canpus, so she was on canpus two weeks
each senester. She selected the organizational | eadership
program because it would be useful across disciplines. This
continuing education was in addition to the bachelor's degree
she received in 1985.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if she was aware of the conviction of
former Anchorage Police Departnent (APD) Oficer Anthony
Rol | i ns.

M5. ALZAHARNA answered yes.

SENATOR MCGUIRE highlighted a simlar case in the North Slope
Borough of a police officer using his badge and authority to
rape wonen, and asked if it's been a priority on the Police
St andards Council to discuss training procedures to keep police
officers from using the power of their badge for sexual abuse.
Senator MQ@iire expressed extrenme concern that both cases
involved nultiple rapes, and one resulted in the death of a
young woman in Wstern Al aska. She asked M. Alzaharna if she
too was concerned and what the Police Standards Council intends
to do about this.

2:11:11 PM

M5. ALZAHARNA replied she is very concerned and she deals wth
those types of issues on day-to-day basis. The NSBPD provides
training for officers and she nmakes her expectations about
of ficer performance and behavior very clear. There hasn't been
an overall discussion on that topic since she began serving on
the Police Standards Council, but it is warranted, she said.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 9, 2011



SENATOR MCGUI RE asked Ms. Al zaharna to take a | eadership role on
this topic, and said she would follow up with a witten request.
| mproved training is needed for all menbers to better
under stand: how people get off the path; the tenptation to abuse
power; the warning signs that fellow officers can |ook for; the
procedure for reporting to superiors; and that young wonen
should be infornmed of their rights when they suspect that an
officer is abusing his power and authority. W need to provide
training so that the young nen and wonen who are serving proudly
and with honor aren't enbarrassed by their few coll eagues who

fall into those conundruns, she stated.

2:13: 28 PM

M5. ALZAHARNA agreed that that sort of training should be
available at all departnent l|evels, and that the APSC could

certainly nove that task to a higher priority.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if APSC wll decertify fornmer Oficer
Rol |'i ns.

MS. ALZAHARNA deferred to the council director.

2:14: 35 PM

TERRY VRABEC, D rector, Al aska Police Standards Council,
expl ained that the crimnal case is over as of this norning so
the council will be able to act on its concerns and nove forward
with the surrender of his certificate or decertification.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if there will be an effort to inprove the
procedures so that potential problenms could be identified and
weeded out early on, because he suspects that warning signs were
over |l ooked in both cases.

MR. VRABEC agreed that sonetinmes there are signs and it's a
matter of whether or not they're reported. Oficers at the
Pol i ce Acadeny receive extensive training in ethics and behavi or
he said, but it's inportant to keep in mnd that between
corrections and police there are 3,000 officers, and a few
potentially won't do their jobs correctly. In the two cases that
were nentioned the officers definitely went off the far end, but
as a whole he believes the officers in this state perform very
well. He highlighted that departnents statew de make independent
deci sions about training and sone conduct extensive training in
this area. He noted that he recently nmet wth Comm ssioner
Masters' staff and APSC is again working with the Police Acadeny
on additional training to determ ne what can be done differently
to help officers make the right decisions.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 9, 2011



2:17:45 PM

SENATOR MCCGUI RE reiterated that she would send a letter to the
APSC asking for nore thorough officer training, and she would
like a witten response nenorializing the verbal conmmtnents
made today. She asked if there is an opportunity for officers to
anonynously report to a superior any warning signs they see in a
fellow officer, and if there is a way for a nenber of the public
who has been arrested to make a request for a followup
investigation without fear of retribution. She suggested that a
statement reaffirmng the inportance of safety for the wonen of
Al aska would help wonmen feel that APSC takes this seriously and
is making an effort.

2:20: 07 PM

MR. VRABEC said he would formally put this topic on the agenda
at the next council neeting and he would be happy to have a
foll owup neeting. He explained that sonme agencies automatically
do extensive background checks as part of the hiring process

but sone smaller departnments can't afford that so the APSC hel ps
with some of those costs. Psychol ogi cal and pol ygraph screening
on the front-end has certainly been successful in weeding out
potentially problenmatic officers.

CHAI R FRENCH found no further questions and asked for a notion.

2:21:26 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI noved to forward the nane Kelly Al zaharna
to the joint session of the Senate and House for confirmation to
the Al aska Police Standards Council. There being no objection,
it was so ordered.

2:22:57 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked Ms. Hanon to tell the conmttee about herself
and her interest in serving on the Al aska Police Standards
Counci | .

REBECCA HAMON, Appointee, Al aska Police Standards Council, King

Sal nmon, said she has lived and worked in this snmall Bush
cormunity for 12 years. For the past tw years she has worked
for Safe and Fear Free Environnment, Inc. (SAFE), an advocacy

program for victins of sexual assault and donmestic violence. She
highlighted that the levels of donestic violence and sexual
assault in the state and Southwest Alaska in particular are
extrenely high. It's a common problem throughout the villages,
and she's conme to understand what a long conplicated process it

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 9, 2011



is for victims to go through the judicial system | can bring

the victims point of viewto the council, she stated.

2:25:19 PM

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that the Al aska Police Standards
Council has four public nenbers on the board, tw from

communities with populations of 2,500 or less and King Salnon
qualifies under that standard. He asked Ms. Hanmon why she cane
to Al aska.

M5. HAMON replied she and her husband canme to Alaska in 1998
after he got a job as a scientist at Katnmai National ParKk.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what pronpted her interest in advocacy for
victinms of donestic violence and sexual assault.

M5. HAMON said that after living in the community for awhile she
began to see the problens related to alcohol and drug abuse,
some of which had been ongoing for generations. After her
children were ol der she began social service volunteer work and
sonmeone suggested she apply for a job with the advocacy program
After doing some research, she becane interested and that was
t he begi nni ng.

2:27:29 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if she had attended a neeting of the Al aska
Pol i ce Standards Council .

MS. HAMON said no, but she had read about their work.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE asked if she heard the discussion with the
former applicant.

M5. HAMON said no because of tel econference difficulties.

SENATOR MCGUI RE sunmmari zed the discussion with M. Vrabec and
Chi ef Al zaharna. He asked if she was aware of the Rollins case
and if she had any thoughts about training police to be
respectful of wonen and not using their badges for sexual abuse.

2:30: 04 PM

M5. HAMON said she did follow the case in the papers and she
believes that it's a very serious problem that needs attention

She added that while she hasn't had a bad experience working
with officers, she does believe that there's a lack of
under standing about the effect that a male police officer has
when he is interviewwng a wonman after a sexual assault. Her

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 9, 2011



experience at SAFE is that in many instances the only interviews
that victinmse had were with two nale police officers in the room
which made it difficult to tell their story. There isn't a
femal e police officer in this part of the state and that can be
a problem

CHAI R FRENCH found no further questions and asked for a notion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to forward the name Rebecca Hanon to
the joint session of the Senate and House for confirmation to
the Al aska Police Standards Council. There being no objection,
it was so ordered.

2:31: 55 PM
At ease.

2:32:37 PM

CHAI R FRENCH reconvened the neeting and asked Ms. Troglio to
tell the conmttee about her interest in continuing to serve on
t he Al aska Police Standards Council.

BERNI CE TROGLI O,  Appointee, Alaska Police Standards Council,
Anchorage, stated that she has been on the council since 2008
and would like to continue that service. She explained that her
career as a probation officer (PO began in 1999. In 2000 she
was pronmoted to supervise the sex offender nental health unit at
the Anchorage probation office and in 2009 she was pronoted to
her current position as the statew de sex offender nental health
program nanager within the probation and parole division. Wen
she began her career she took an oath to abide by the code of
et hi cal professional conduct and she said she lives by that code
both on duty and off. She said she has very high standards and
believes that all |aw enforcenent officers should hold simlarly
hi gh standards. The mssion and vision of the Al aska Police
St andards Council appeared to be a good fit, and it has been,
she stated. It's an honor to serve Alaska as both a council
menber and a | aw enforcenent officer, she concl uded.

2:36: 50 PM

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out that for a nunber of years she's
performed the somewhat overl apping duties of a probation officer
|V and council nmenber.

SENATOR COGHI LL thanked Ms. Troglio for her work on Internet
crinmes against children and noted that this is a sonmewhat new
area for the APSC. He asked how the police workforce |ooks at
accountability for the officers who have to deal wth those

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 9, 2011



rough circunstances. He expressed concern about ruining police
of ficers who have to work in this difficult area.

M5. TROGLIO said the Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force
is currently developing a comrittee to address standards for
dealing with on the job traunma.

SENATOR COGHI LL said he wanted to highlight that issue in |ight
of what Senator MQiire brought up, because officers that do go
bad can cause a great deal of damage.

M5. TROGLIO agreed that it's devastating for everyone when an
of ficer doesn't abide by the code of ethics.

CHAIR FRENCH told Ms. Troglio about the running conmentary today
on the Rollins case and the shock the public has expressed in
seeing a male officer abuse wonen. Senator MQ@ire pointed out
the need for officers to have an avenue to report on a coworker
i f necessary.

M5. TROGLI O stated agreenent with the idea.
CHAI R FRENCH found no further questions and solicited a notion.

2:42:18 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI rnoved to forward the nane Bernice Troglio
to the joint session of the Senate and House for confirmation to
the Alaska Police Standards Council. There being no objection,
it was so ordered.

2:42: 46 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:42 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 9, 2011



